
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

 SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

BUSINESS MEETING 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / August 15, 2011    

                                                    

PUBLIC HEARING:   

 

Annexation:                Right-of-Way of AL State Highway 181 

 

Location:                   The right-of-way of AL State Highway 181 from Lawson Road South to the Southernmost 

                                   Corporate limits of the City of Daphne 

 

Recommendation:     Unanimous favorable recommendation    / Ordinance 2011-64 

 

                                                            

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake         

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware  

          Review minutes / August 10
th
  

 

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Boulware     
    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  Yelding 

          Environmental Committee Members Needed 

  

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

          Review minutes / August 4
th
  

 

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette   

          Review minutes / August 22
nd

  

          Need one (1) member   

 

    C.  Industrial Development Board – Yelding  

          Review minutes / August 22
nd

          

          Need One (1) member 

 

    D.  Library Board – Lake  

    E.  Planning Commission – Barnette      
          Review minutes / July 28

th
    

          MOTION:  Set Public Hearings for October 17, 2011 to consider: 

1.)  Amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance / Revision to the Zoning Map 

Recommendation:     Unanimous Favorable 

 

 2.)  Rezone:                      Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity 

       Location:                    On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Rd. 

                                           Lot, 1, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C  

       Present Zoning:          R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential and R-2, Medium Density Single Family  

                                           Residential 

       Requested Zoning:     R-3, High Density Multi-Family Residential  

       Recommendation:      Unanimous Favorable 

 
1



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                             SEPTEMBER 6, 2011                                   PAGE  2 

 

 

3.)  Rezone:                       Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity 

      Location:                     On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Rd. 

                                           Lot, 2, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C  

      Present Zoning:           R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential  

      Requested Zoning:      R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential  

      Recommendation:       Unanimous Favorable 

 

4.)  Rezone:             Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity 

      Location:                    On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Rd. 

                                          Lot, 3, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C  

      Present Zoning:          R-1, Low Density Multi-Family Residential  

      Requested Zoning:     R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential  

      Recommendation:      Unanimous Favorable 

   

     F.  Recreation Board – Reese       

          Need two (2) members 

       

    G.  Utility Board - Scott     

           

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report  
           a.)  Special Events Permit / Christ the King Church / Prayer Event / October 15, 2011           ‘ 

           b.)  ABC License / Harry’s Sound Bar / 010 – Lounge Retail Liquor – Class I 

           c.)  Parade Permit / Bounds Family YMCA / 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run  / October 1, 2011 

 

B. City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:    

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Revisions to the City of Daphne Street Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-62 

 

b.)  Re-appoint Two Directors to the Board of Directors of 

       Renaissance Improvement District. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-63 

 

c.)      Re-electing One Director to the Board of Directors of 

          Renaissance Cooperative District. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-64 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2



 

 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                             SEPTEMBER 6, 2011                                   PAGE  3 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

      2
nd

 READ 

a.)   Pay Adjustment:  $.50/hour . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-58 

 

b.)  Amending Pay Table for $.50 Pay Adjustment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-60 

 

c.)   Pavement Striping & Marking of Roads. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-61 

 

d.)  Pay for Appraisals for NRDA Grant with Lodging Tax. . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-63 

 

 

      1
ST 

READ 
e.)  Annexation of AL State Hwy 181 Right-of-Way . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-64 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   

                                  

COUNCILMAN YELDING     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR SMALL    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

4



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

5



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Pastor Joe Lee, Eastern Shore Christian Center. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Bailey Yelding; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

James White, Fire Chief; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Vickie 

Hinman, Human Resources Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official 

Tonja Young, Library Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic 

Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Captain Scott Taylor, Police Department;  

Employees of the City; Officer Mike Dawson, Police Department; Jane Ellis, Mayors Assistant; Scott 

Hutchinson, City Engineer; Ed Kirby, Planning Commission; Rob McElroy, Daphne Utility; Bob Segalla, 

Utility Board;  Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission; Dorothy 

Morrison, Beautification Committee; Tomasina Werner, Beautification Committee. 

 

Absent: Mayor Small. 

 

Council President Barnette pulled Resolution 2011-58 from the agenda. 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the August 1, 2011 Council meeting minutes.   

Seconded by Councilman Yelding.  

 

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                           ABSTAIN    Reese           

 

                                      NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the August 8, 2011 Special Called Council meeting 

minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                    ABSTAIN    Reese 

 

                                NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

6



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the August 8, 2011 Council Work Session 

minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                        ABSTAIN    Reese 

 

                                     NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to authorize the Mayor to explore the feasibility of authorizing 

the expenditure of BP funds for the paving of the parking lot of Daphne High School.  Seconded 

by Councilman Yelding. 

 

Mr. Ross stated that he has had some conversations with the Homeland Security Director, Spencer 

Collier, and now he is dealing with somebody at the state EMA, whom Mr. Collier said has 

jurisdiction over that, and they have been playing phone tag since last Friday.  He is working on that, 

and the Mayor is looking for an update as soon as he has some information. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

PRESENTATION:  Daphne Utility Rate Increase / Rob McElroy 

 

Mr. McElroy stated that if it was not necessary they would not be raising the water and sewer rates, 

but they must keep up with mandates imposed by regulations.  If they do not raise the rates they will 

violate the bond.  Simply repairing the pipes they will not be able to meet Daphne’s water needs next 

summer.  They need to repair existing wells, and they do not have any spare wells from which to draw.  

A new well costs about $1 million each.  They also need another tank to store water at a cost of $1 

million.  The Utility Board has implemented cost cutting measures for the Utility. 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the August 8
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

Mr. Pfil Hunt gave a short presentation on the savings if the city refunds the 2006 Limited Obligation 

Revenue Warrants.  They can get an interest rate would go from 7.5% to around 4.5%.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

MOTIONS: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to authorize the Finance Director to work with Gardnyr 

Michael Capital & Hand  Arendall to structure the refunding and take the steps necessary to 

refund the 2006 Limited Liability Revenue Warrants.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

  

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to go out for bid for two (2) F150 Trucks: Street & Solid 

Waste for FY12 Budget.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Treasurers Report / July 31, 2011: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to accept the Treasurers Report as of July 31, 2011, in the 

amount of $19,421,404.41.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Sales and Use Tax Reports June 30, 2011: 
 

Sales and Use Tax Collected for June 2011    -      $946,356 

Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for June 2011   -       $876,618             

Over Budget (for June)                                    -      $  69,738 

 

 

YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $755,045  

 

 

Lodging Tax Collections, June 2011:  

 

The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $67,544.77 collected for June, 2011 

          

 

The next meeting will be September 12
th

 at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference Room.   

 

 

 

 

 
8



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The minutes for the August 1
st
 meeting are in the packet.  The committee discussed retiring the Zydeco 

Festival due to lack of interest by the community.  It is mainly people from out of state that attend, and 

they have not gotten any reports from the hotels as to the revenue generated by the festival.  Mrs. 

Thigpen is looking at other options. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –  
No report.  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –   

The minutes for the August 10
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Yelding 

The minutes for the July 26
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The Lake Forest  road project will be completed 

by April 13, 2012, and they are ahead of schedule.  There is a dangerous tree on Van Avenue that needs 

to be cut down, and he hopes the council will suspend the rules to authorize the work to be done. 

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Mrs. Jones 

The minutes for the April 7
th

 meeting are in the packet.  There will not be a meeting in September. 

 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The Authority needs one (1) member. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Yelding 

Appoint member / Angela L. Mayer: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to appoint Angela L. Mayer to the Industrial Development 

Board.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Councilman Yelding stated that the board still needs one (1) member, and asked that they contact him 

or David Cohen with the nomination.  

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

No report. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Jones 

There are three (3) sets of minutes in the packet June 15
th

 Special meeting minutes, June 23
rd

 meeting 

minutes and July 14
th

 Special meeting minutes.  

 
9



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Public Hearing for September 19, 2011 and approve 

advertising to consider an amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance / Sign Provision.  

Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Yelding  Aye     Boulware Aye 

Lake   Nay     Palumbo Nay 

Reese  Abstain    Barnette Nay 

Scott   Aye 

 

AYE    Yelding, Scott, Boulware    NAY    Lake, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

                                               ABSTAIN    Reese             MOTION FAILED 

 

 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

The board needs two (2) members.  Contact Councilman Reese, David McKelroy or David Cohen 

with nominations. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The Public Hearing for the rate increase has been changed to 6:30 p.m. on August 31
st
 so the public 

can come.  The will hold the business meeting first, and then the public hearing. 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

         a.)  Special Events Permit / S.E.E.D.S. Mama Mia Cook Off / November 12, 2011 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve the Special Events Permit for the SE.E.D.S 

Mama Mia Cook Off being held November 12, 2011.   Seconded by  Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 B.  City Attorney Report 

Mr. Ross said that there are two (2) matters of pending litigation he needs to discuss with council in 

Executive Session.  He said it would take about 15 minutes, and council will need to come out and 

vote after the session. 

 

C. Department Head Comments 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – said that channel 15 is doing a show on Coastal 

Community, and Daphne will be featured Thursday. She reminded everyone that the Taste of the 

Eastern Shore is Friday, and doors open at 7:00 p.m. 
10



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported that last week 30 mailboxes and 10 cars were damaged.  

They caught the juveniles that damaged the 10 cars. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that the fall registration is closed, and there were 

225 that signed up for soccer, 203 for football and 75 cheerleaders. 

 

David Cohen – City Clerk – reported that he has the estimates back on the appraisals for the NRDA 

property for $11,000 instead of $7,500. 

 

Adrienne Jones – Planning Director – reminded everyone that the Site Preview meeting is 

Wednesday at 8:30 a.m. in the Council Chambers. 

 

 
 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Chester McConnell – 8803 Pine Run – spoke against the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

with Academy Sports, and he also submitted a printout of e-mails of people against the MOU. 

 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Business owner in Daphne - spoke regarding government controlling people’s 

lives.  He also spoke in favor of the proposed sign ordinance. 

 

Mr. Henry Lawson – 104 Booksketuh Circle – spoke regarding seeing a site plan for the project. 

 

Mr. Thom Hickman – New Horizon Retail Development – addressed misconceptions people have 

regarding the Academy Sports project. 

 

Mrs. McConnell – 8803 Pine Run – read a statement against the MOU with New Horizon Retail 

Development. (Statement is spread out upon these minutes) 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Accept Property / ROW / Patricia T. Gipson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-58 

 

b.)  Change Name of Lawson Road to Champions Way . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-59 

 

c.)   Declare City Property Surplus……….. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-60 

 

d.)  Apply for LWCF Grant for Tennis Courts at Lott Park. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-61 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2011-58 WAS PULLED FROM THE AGENDA EARLIER IN THE MEETING. 

 

 

11



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2011-59, 2011-60 and 

2011-61.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2011-59.  Seconded by Councilman 

Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2011-60.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                        NAY    Lake 

 

                                                              MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2011-61.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 
ORDINANCES: 

        2
ND

  READ. 

 a.)  Memorandum of Understanding / New Horizon 

        Retail Development. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-59 

 

       1
ST 

READ 
a.)   Pay Adjustment:  $.50/hour . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-58 

 

b.)  Amending Pay Table for $.50 Pay Adjustment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-60 

 

c.)   Pavement Striping & Marking of Roads. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-61 

 

d.)  Tree Removal…………………………….. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-62 

 

e.)  Pay for Appraisals for NRDA Grant with Lodging Tax. . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-63 

 

 

 

 

12



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-59.  Seconded by 

Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-59.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

Councilman Palumbo read an excerpt from an e-mail from Ms. Elizabeth H. Baran /Corporate Counsel & 

Governmental Affairs for Dick’s Sporting Good’s asking the city to keep the playing field level and not 

enter into this agreement:   

 

“We believe that successful competition requires a level playing field for all and, unfortunately, the use of 

Daphne’s public funds to support the proposed New Horizons Retail Development would favor one 

retailer over others and create unfair competitive advantages in the marketplace.  We do not believe that 

the proposed economic incentive package to support the development and construction of this small retail 

outlet is in the best interest of the City of Daphne.” (The e-mail is spread out upon these minutes) 

 

 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Yelding Aye    Boulware  Aye       

Lake Nay    Palumbo  Nay 

Reese Abstain   Barnette  Nay 

Scott Aye 

 

AYE    Yelding, Scott, Boulware                                        NAY     Lake, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

                     ABSTAIN    Reese                                         MOTION FAILED                                                                

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2011-62.  

Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Yelding Aye    Boulware  Aye 

Lake Aye    Palumbo  Aye 

Reese Aye 

Scott Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
13



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-62.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to adopt Ordinance 2011-62.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                                                    
 

 

ORDINANCES 2011-58, 2011-60, 2011-61, 2011-63 WERE MADE 1
ST

 READ. 
 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Scott hopes that Academy will come to Daphne, the city could use the revenue for a new Fire 

Station and putting more policemen on the streets. 

 

Councilman Boulware said that he was representing the people of his district and the city as a whole with 

his vote on the bowling alley. It is important to bring Academy to Daphne.  The people of Daphne have e-

mailed him saying they want Academy to come to Daphne.  They are saying “What is the problem.”  People 

use Academy, and he is doing what the people want.  People will remember. 

 

Councilman Palumbo asked where are the people that wrote in and want Academy Sports?  He said to the 

citizens to let council never deter them from speaking out. 

 

Councilman Lake said the city was bit by Jubilee Square so the old council did not go after the Eastern 

Shore Center.  He does not think the city should be giving away tax dollars.  He mentioned an alternate site 

where they might build which is the site that has Office Depot. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that she is tickled pink with the decision tonight.  She feels the people’s 

voice has been reflected.  She has been on the losing side of that battle for what seems to be several times 

before, and she is pleased to be on the winning side tonight. She thinks they made the right decision for 

number of reasons that has been previously stipulated. She does hope that Academy will choose to come.  

She asked Chief White to start letting people know what the 9/11 anniversary memorial will be.  She said in 

the past they said they would do something special for the 10year anniversary. She asked that he report on 

this at the next council meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
14



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

10 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

Mr. Ross, City Attorney, stated that this is an appropriate reason to go into Executive Session by the 

Alabama Open Meetings Act.  The meeting will last for approximately 15 minutes. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Yelding  Aye     Boulware  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Palumbo  Aye 

Reese  Aye     Barnette  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Council entered into Executive Session at 8:47 p.m. 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 9:10 p.m. 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to authorize the settlement of the Rod Cooke Construction 

binding arbitration proceedings by the payment of $250,000 from the reserve account, and authorize 

the Mayor to sign any and all necessary documents to settle the case, and to further authorize Kim 

Briley, the city Finance Director, to issue a check in the amount of $250,000 to Rod Cooke 

Construction or whoever else it may be for the settlement.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
15



AUGUST 15, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

11 

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 9:13 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President 

16



17



18



19



PUBLIC HEARING  

 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 
 

 

 

1.)     Annexation:   Right-of-Way of AL State Hwy 181 

      

    Property Located:  Right-of-Way of AL State Hwy 181 from 

Lawson Road South to the Southernmost 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne 

 

    Recommendation:    Unanimous Favorable 

 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

31



32



33



34



35



36



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

37



CITY OF DAPHNE           

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT MINUTES                      

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 4, 2011 - 6:00 P.M.      

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

  

 1 

The Chairman stated the number of members present constituted a quorum 

and the special called meeting of the Board of Zoning Adjustment was 

called to order at 6:00 p.m. Let us have roll call.  

 

Call of Roll: 

 

Members Present: 

 

Willie Robison, Chairman 

Jeri Hargiss, Secretary       

Glen Swaney  

Jim Moss 

Tony Felts 

 

Members Absent: 

 

Frank Lamb 

Billy Mayhand, Vice Chairman 

 

Staff Present: 

 

Adrienne D. Jones, Director of Community Development  

Tony Hoffman, BZA Attorney 

Pat Houston, Recording Secretary 

 

The Chairman stated since there are five of us present tonight I would 

like to state that it will take four of the five to approve the 

appeal. Am I correct, Ms. Pat? 

 

Ms. Houston stated yes, sir. 

 

The Chairman stated before we get started tonight, I would like to 

welcome our newest member, Mr. Tony Felts, to the BZA, and I look 

forward to working with him. Also, since we are doing this now, you 

may or may not know this, but his father had a massive heart attack 

several weeks ago, and he is doing much better now, however, we would 

like for each of you to remember Kelvin Felts in your prayers. Once 

again, thanks Tony, and welcome to the Board.  

 

Mr. Felts stated thanks, I appreciate that. 

 

The Chairman stated next item on the agenda is the approval of the 

April 7th, 2011 meeting minutes. There is one correction that has been 

made. Where it states Robbins it should be Dobbins. The Chair will 

entertain a motion to approve the minutes as corrected. 

 

Approval of Minutes: 

 

The minutes of the April 7th, 2011 meeting were considered for 

approval.  

38



CITY OF DAPHNE           

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT MINUTES                      

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 4, 2011 - 6:00 P.M.      

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

  

 2 

A Motion was made by Mr. Moss and Seconded by Mr. Swaney to approve 

the minutes as written. 

 

The Motion carried unanimously. 

 

New Business: 

 

Appeal #2011-03 Taylor & Kristan Culpepper 

 

The Chairman stated next is new business on the agenda, Appeal #2011-

03 Taylor & Kristan Culpepper, a variance to allow a covered front 

porch to encroach one-foot into the front setback line. The property 

is located at 209 Maplewood Loop, and it is in an R-3, High Density 

Single Family Residential Zone. Ms. Jones, if you would take us 

through this please.  

 

Ms. Jones displayed a Power Point Presentation of 209 Maplewood Loop, 

Lot 40, Unit 11, Lake Forest Subdivision. She stated that the minimum 

setback on the front of this property is thirty-feet on the front and 

rear with ten-feet on the sides. What we have for the actual setback 

on the front of the property is nineteen-feet. It is actually a little 

over nineteen-feet, but I stuck with nineteen to have a benchmark and 

some clarity. Therefore, what is requested is just a one-foot 

encroachment into the front setback. The property is located within 

the Lake Forest Subdivision and it is completely within a residential 

development on Maplewood Loop, and this is the subject property. As 

you can see this is the covered porch, and this is the property 

looking northward, and it is basically a couple of inches that is just 

beyond the pillar that is holding up the front part of the porch that 

is encroaching. So that area you see, the porch area, it is the area 

of encroachment. What we found was that in May the Building Inspection 

Department issued a Certificate of Occupancy for this site, and a 

little bit later a survey was done, in order to acquire a mortgage, 

and at that time they discovered that there was an encroachment on the 

front setback. The encroachment is minor and I would chalk it up to an 

error on behalf of the builder. The encroachment does not violate the 

intent of the Land Use Ordinance. I would recommend approval, and that 

is it in a nutshell.         

 

Mr. Moss stated short and sweet. Way to go.  

 

The Chairman stated I believe we have Ms. Culpepper, the owner, here 

and Mr. Art Lami, who will be representing her. Mr. Lami, do you have 

anything you would like to say to the Board? If you will, step to the 

podium and state your name for the record, please. 

 

Mr. Lami stated no, sir. She basically covered the main points. I 

built the home and made the error that I was not aware of it until the 

day of closing, and that is it. I would just like for her to be able 

to have a clear title to the property. 

39



CITY OF DAPHNE           

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT MINUTES                      

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 4, 2011 - 6:00 P.M.      

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

  

 3 

The Chairman stated did you get that Ms. Pat? 

 

Ms. Houston stated yes. 

 

The Chairman stated let the record show that there are no adjacent 

property owners here to speak in opposition to this variance. At the 

time the Chair will entertain a motion, and remember the motion must 

be made in the affirmative. 

 

A Motion was made by Mr. Swaney and Seconded by Mr. Moss to approve 

Appeal #2011-03, Taylor & Kristan Culpepper, for a variance to allow 

the front porch at 209 Maplewood Loop to encroach the front setback 

line by one-foot. The property is located in an R-3, High Density 

Single Family Residential Zone. 

 

Upon roll call vote, the motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ms. Hargiss  Aye 

Mr. Swaney  Aye 

Mr. Felts  Aye 

Mr. Robison Aye 

Mr. Moss  Aye 

 

The Chairman stated the appeal is granted. You may go by the Community 

Development Department here in city hall in the morning around 9:00 

a.m. and pick up your paperwork. If there is no other business, the 

Chair will entertain a motion to adjourn. 

 

Adjournment: 

 

A Motion was made by Mr. Moss and Seconded by Mr. Felts to adjourn.  

 

The Motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 6:10 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

                                       .             

Pat Houston, Recording Secretary 

 

APPROVED:  

 

    

                                       .               

Willie Robison, Chairman  

 

 

/ph 

40



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL                                                                                           UNAPPROVED  

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                              MINUTES                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
AUGUST 22, 2011 

5:30 P.M. 

 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLLCALL 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Members Present: Casey Zito; Ronald Nero; Ken Balme.; Doug Bailey 

  

ABSENT:  Kelly Hughes;  Mary Beth Mantiply. 

 

Also present: Cathy Barnette, Council Liaison Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; 

Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee. 

 

 

2.  ADOPT MINUTES / JUNE 27 2011 

 

MOTION BY Ken Balme to approve the June 27, 2011 meeting minutes. Seconded by 

Ronald Nero. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR           NAY   NONE OPPOSED           MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

3.   OLD BUSINESS 

 

Grant Writer 
Stacy McKean, grant writer, will be at the next meeting. 

 

Mini-Grant Application: 

Members discussed structure of the mini-grant.  Casey will work it and e-mail it to the 

members.  Members agreed that this would be on a reimbursement basis, and businesses 

must have receipts to be reimbursed.   

 

Focus Group Meeting 

Members agreed that they will hold the Focus Group meeting on September 26
th

 at Vino e 

Bira. 

 

Website 

Casey will get a proposal for the website in writing for the next meeting.  They could not 

go through Pacsync for the website, although, they might be able to link through the 

committee page on the city’s website.  

 

4.    TREASURERS REPORT: 

There is a discrepancy in the amount that Mrs. Briley sent, and Becky will find out what 

the real balance is for the next meeting. 

 

 

 

41



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                     

AUGUST 22, 2011 

5:30 P.M. 

 

 

2 

 

 

   

5.   NEW BUSINESS 

Daphne Pottery 

The old Daphne Pottery is behind the grave yard by the Daphne Museum.  The members 

discussed making a boardwalk to and around the old pottery site like the oak tree at Village 

Point Park Preserve.  Ken talked with Mr. and Mrs. Olds regarding this, but they need to 

find out what the liability would be, and check out the site to make sure it is safe.  Doug 

said that he would check the site out for safety. 
 

 

6.   REPORT ON BEAUTIFICATION PROJECTS / DOROTHY MORRISION 

Dorothy reported that the gazebo in Centennial Park is up and running, and they are 

working on the parking lot.  They are still trying to get in touch with Mrs. Dunmore 

regarding pouring a concrete sidewalk in front of Flowers Etc. The committee is trying to 

get permission to clean up the old Pine Lodge across from W. J. Carroll. 

 

 

TO DO LIST 

List of businesses for Focus Group 

Doug secure grant writer for September meeting 

Casey resend grant application to members 

Casey get proposal for website 

Doug meet with Ken to check out old Daphne Pottery site 

Cathy check with Jay about liability for boardwalk to pottery site 

Doug check with Jeff Hudson regarding plaque for fountain 

 

 

7.  NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting will be September 26, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority                           

 
                                                                                                      

42



August 22, 2011 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING 6:00 P.M. at  Daphne City Hall, 

1705 Main Street, Daphne, AL in conference room. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 

Members present – Toni Fassbender, Angela Mayer, Dennis Kearney, Dan Romanchuk, Tom 

Byrne, Doug Bailey 

Also present – David Cohen, Josh Thornton 

 

Angela Mayer introduced herself to the IDB. 

 

2. OLD BUSINESS 

 

3.  TREASURERS REPORT 

 

 Dan Romanchuk gave the treasure’s report in which he stated the bank balance 

$203,920.72 and a recievables due from the City of Daphne in the amount of $12,066.77 for 

March, April, May, and June lodging tax. 

 

Motion by Mr. Byrne  Seconded by Mr. Bailey To purchase a 2 year CD 

from Wells Fargo Bank 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

Motion by Mr. Byrne  Seconded by Mr. Bailey To accept the Treasure’s 

Report 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

  

4.   NEW BUSINESS 

   

a. Resolution supporting mega site industrial park for Baldwin County 

 

Motion by Mr. Kearney  Seconded by Mr. Bailey To support the Mega Site 

Industrial Park in Baldwin County by resolution 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED   MOTION CARRIED 

 

5.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Josh Thornton gave a report on the current state of Baldwin County Alliance. 

 

 

 

 

43



 

6.   ADJOURN 

 

Motion by Mr. Bailey  Seconded by Mr. Byrne To adjourn and set net 

meeting for October 24, 2011 at 6:00 P.M. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING 

 ADJOURNED AT 6:49  P.M. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________ 

David L. Cohen, Secretary 

 

Approved: 

________________________ 

Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE 

 

OCTOBER 17, 2011 
 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 

 
1.)  Amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance / Revision to      

      the Zoning Map 

 

      Recommendation:       Unanimous Favorable 

 

 

 2.)  Rezone:                     Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity 

       Location:                   On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of   

                                          Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Rd. 

                                          Lot, 1, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C  

       Present Zoning:          R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential and    

                                          R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential 

       Requested Zoning:     R-3, High Density Multi-Family Residential  

       Recommendation:      Unanimous Favorable 

 

 

 

3.)  Rezone:                       Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity 

      Location:                     On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of   

                                          Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Rd. 

                                           Lot, 2, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C  

      Present Zoning:           R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential  

      Requested Zoning:      R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential  

      Recommendation:       Unanimous Favorable 

 

4.)  Rezone:                       Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity 

      Location:                     On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of  Austin   

                                           Road, North of Dick Higbee Rd. Lot, 3,                        

                                           Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C  

      Present Zoning:           R-1, Low Density Multi-Family Residential  

      Requested Zoning:      R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential  

      Recommendation:       Unanimous Favorable  

68



69



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO.  2011- 

 

 

 

Zoning District Map 

Revision to Appendix H of the City of Daphne  

Land Use and Development Ordinance 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at their regular 

meeting held on August 25, 2011 , favorably recommended to the City Council of the City of 

Daphne certain amendments to the Zoning District Map approved and adopted by the Daphne Land 

Use and Development Ordinance No. 2002-22, referenced in Appendix H AExhibit A@  thereof and 

amended by Ordinance No. 2003-06, Ordinance No. 2005-11, Ordinance No. 2005-42, Ordinance 

No. 2006-24, Ordinance No. 2006-73, Ordinance No. 2007-15, Ordinance 2007-48 and Ordinance 

2008-56, Ordinance 2009-19, Ordinance 2009-60, Ordinance 2010-66, Ordinance 2011-20 and 

Ordinance 2011-54; and 

 

WHEREAS, said amendments are necessary due to various rezoning and annexation 

requests which have been approved since the adoption of Ordinance 2002-22, Ordinance 2003-06, 

Ordinance  2005-11, Ordinance 2005-42, Ordinance 2006-24, Ordinance 2006-73, Ordinance 2007-

15, Ordinance 2007-48, Ordinance 2008-56, Ordinance 2009-19, Ordinance 2009-60, Ordinance 

2010-66, Ordinance 2011-20 and Ordinance 2011-54; and 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed zoning map amendments has been provided to the 

public as required by law through publication and open display at the City  of Daphne Public Library 

and City Hall; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing regarding the proposed Zoning District Map amendments was 

held by the City Council on October 17, 2011; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

recommendation of the Planning Commission believe it in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne to amend said Zoning District Map as recommended; 

and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I: ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

The Zoning District Map referenced hereto as Exhibit AA@ shall be the official zoning map of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and shall be further designated in Appendix H of Exhibit AA@ of the 

City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, as set forth in Ordinance No. 2011-54 and its 

amendments. 

 

70



SECTION II: REPEALER 

Ordinances Nos. 2002-22 and 2011-54, Appendix H AExhibit A@, and Ordinances 2003-06, 

2005-11, 2005-42, 2006-24, 2006-73,  2007-15, 2007-48, 2008-56, 2009-19, 2009-60, 2010-66 are 

specifically repealed and any Ordinance(s), parts of Ordinance(s) or Resolution(s) conflicting with 

the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as they conflict. 

 

SECTION III: EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City of Daphne City Council and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THE        DAY OF                , 2011. 

 

 

______________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE,  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

               

_____________________ 

FRED SMALL,  

MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

71



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 Zone & Street 
Map Edits 

       

 
 

January 1, 2011- July 30, 2011 

                     
Prepared by: Nancy Anderson, GIS Manager, City of Daphne Community 
Development 

  
 
 

 

72



 

CITY OF DAPHNE ZONE MAP & STREET MAP CHANGES 
January 2011 – July 2011 

 
08/04/2011 

 

This report corresponds to the Zone & Street map edits for the period of January 1, 2011through July 30, 2011. The 

red numbers on the left-hand margin of this report serve as a key to the map & should be used to identify the particular 

edit on the map. These edits are further identified on the map by stick-on arrow indicators, with the corresponding 

assigned number written on the arrows. 

 

The date displayed at the end of each line of this report is either the date of the Planning Commission Meeting, in 

which the project was approved or the date the City Council signed the approval ordinance or resolution for the given 

project.  

 

Projects are not added until they receive preliminary/final or final plat designation. 

 

 
SUBDIVISIONS: 

 
#1)   Mark Trione’s Belforest Subdivision , Unit 2, Lot 2 – N side Milton Jones, W of Hwy 181, ET Jurisdiction,  

PC 01/27/2011. 
#2)    Property Division  – City of Daphne & Daphne Utilities – .13 AC +/- at SE intersection Hwy 98 & Johnson 

Rd & .15 AC at City Hall & BRAG Bldg -  PC 03/24/2011. 
#3)   ReSub Caroline Woods, Lot 27, Ph 2A – NW intersection Whispering Pines & Pollard Rd -  PC 04/28/2011. 
#4)   ReSub Highfield Farms, Parcels 1 & 3 – Hwy 90 & Yance Ln -  PC 07/28/2011. 

 
RE-ZONE: 

 
#5)   Ordinance # 2010-72 – Big Sandy, LLC– .72 AC +/- , B-2 to R-4 PC 10/28/2010, CC 01/03/2011. 
#6)   Ordinance # 2011-01 –Caroline Woods –  3.47 AC +/- ,R-3 to R-4 – PC 11/18/2010, Adopted CC 
01/18/2011. 
 
RE-PLATS & EXEMPTION CHANGES: 
 
#7)   Re-Plat Belforest Baptist Church Property  – SW intersection Cnty Rd 64 & Hwy 181 -  PC 03/24/2011. 
#8)   Re-Plat Renaissance Center, Ph 3, Lots 8 & 9  Hwy 90, NE of  intersection Renaissance Center & Frederick 

Blvd  -  PC 05/26/2011. 
 
LAND USE & DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE CHANGES: 
 
#9)  Ordinance # 2011-54 –New Zoning Classifications – CC 07/18/2011. 
 
CITY OF DAPHNE ET  JURISDICTION:: 
 
ET Jurisdiction Map – official coverage area of the city of Daphne ET Jurisdiction. Jurisdictional boundaries were 
edited by amended agreement between the Baldwin County Commission & the City of Daphne, 12/17/2007. Due to 
nature of boundary extents the Zone map does not show the entire area. This map is to be used in conjunction with the 
Zone map for jurisdictional reference. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

73



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Subdivisions 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

74



 

 

 
 

75



 

 

 

76



 

 

77



 

 
 
 

78



 

 
 
 

79



 

 
 
 
 
 

Re-Zoning 
 
 

80



 

 
 
 

81



 

 
 
 

82



 

 

 

83



 

 
 

84



 85



 

 
 
 

86



 

 
 

87



 

 
 
 

88



 

 

 
 

89



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Re-Plats & 
Exemptions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90



 

 
 

 

91



 

 
 

 

92



 

 
 

Land Use & 
Development 

Ordinance  
 

New Zone Districts 
 
 
 
 

93



 

 

94



 

 
 
 

95



 

 
 
 

 
City of Daphne ET 

Jurisdiction 
 
 

96



 

 

97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

148



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

149



CITY OF DAPHNE 
RESOLUTION NO.  2011 - 62 

 
REVISIONS TO CITY OF DAPHNE STREET MAP 

___________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at their regular 

meeting held on August 25, 2011, approved a favorable recommendation to the City Council of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama for a revision to the City of Daphne Street Map and presented at 

said meeting; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said revision to street map is necessary due to additional streets being 

added to and accepted by the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said revisions to the City of Daphne Street Map has been 

provided to the public as required by law through publication and open display at the City of 

Daphne Public Library and City Hall; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, after due consideration, 

and upon the recommendation of the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, believes it is 

in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City to accept the 

revisions to the City of Daphne Street Map; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I: ADOPTION OF MAP 

 

 THAT the City of Daphne Street Map was considered by the City of Daphne Planning 

Commission on August 25, 2011, and having made a favorable recommendation to the City 

Council and said revised map being attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted as the 

official “City of Daphne Street Map.” 

 

 SECTION II: REPEALER 

 

 THAT Resolution No. 2006-22, Resolution No. 2006-66, and Resolution No. 2007-05, 

Resolution 2007-69, Resolution 2008-02, 2008-41, Resolution 2009-06, Resolution 2009-72, 

Resolution 2010-22, Resolution 2010-76 and 2011-09 entitled “City of Daphne Street Map” are 

hereby repealed in their entirety and any Resolution(s) or parts of Resolution(s) conflicting with 

the provisions of this Resolution are hereby repealed insofar as they conflict. 

 

 SECTION III: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 THAT This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

150



 
 

RESOLUTION 2011- 

REVISED STREET MAP   

PAGE   2 

__________________________________ 

 

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ______DAY OF _____________, 2011. 

 

 

                                                                                                      

       ________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE,  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

       Date and Time Signed:  

 

                           

       ________________________ 

       FRED SMALL,  

MAYOR CITY OF DAPHNE 

       Date and Time Signed:  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

 

151



 

  
02214047.3 

RESOLUTION NO.  2011-63 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE REAPPOINTING 

TWO DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RENAISSANCE IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Daphne, Alabama (the “City”) 

previously approved the formation of Renaissance Improvement District (the “District”) in accordance 

with Chapter 99A of Title 11 of the Code of Alabama (1975), as amended (the “Act”);  

WHEREAS, the respective terms for Charles Patterson and Terry Ogletree as members of the 

Board of Directors of the District expired on June 5, 2010; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to reappoint Charles Patterson and Terry Ogletree as members of 

the District’s Board of Directors for an additional term.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council, as follows:  

1.  That Charles Patterson and Terry Ogletree are hereby reappointed by the Council as  

              members of the District’s Board of Directors. 

 

2. The term of Charles Patterson shall begin at 12:00 a.m. on June 5, 2010 and shall end at  

             11:59 p.m. on June 5, 2013.  The term of Terry Ogletree shall begin at 12:00 a.m. on June  

             5, 2010 and shall end at 11:59 p.m. on June 5, 2013.   

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ______ day of __________, 2011. 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Fred Small, 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

David L. Cohen, 

City Clerk       

  

 

152



 

  
02214068.3 

RESOLUTION NO.  2011-64 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE REELECTING ONE 

DIRECTOR TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RENAISSANCE COOPERATIVE 

DISTRICT   

 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Daphne (the “City”) previously 

elected John Lake as a member of the Board of Directors of the Renaissance Cooperative District (the 

“District”) in accordance with Chapter 99B of Title 11 of the Code of Alabama (1975), as amended (the 

“Act”);  

WHEREAS, John Lake’s term as a member of the Board of Directors of the District expired on 

July 10, 2011; 

WHEREAS, John Lake is a duly qualified elector of the City, and is eligible for reelection 

pursuant to the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to reelect John Lake as a member of the District’s Board of 

Directors for an additional term.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council, as follows:  

1. That John Lake is hereby reelected by the Council as a member of the District’s Board of  

            Directors. 

 

2. The term of John Lake shall begin at 12:01 a.m. on July 10, 2011 and shall end at 12:01  

             a.m. on July 10, 2015.    

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ____ day of ________, 2011 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Fred Small, 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

David L. Cohen, 

City Clerk, MMC 

153



ORDINANCE 2011-58 
 

Pay Adjustment:  Full Time: $1,040/yr  / Part-Time: $ .50/hour-  Pay Adjustment 
 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget on 
December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for an across-the-board 
pay adjustment for City of Daphne employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have evaluated the need for a pay adjustment for 
City employees as no pay increases have been granted since 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS, an annual across-the-board pay adjustment of $ 1,040 has been evaluated 
and determined to be equitable for full-time employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, permanent part-time employees shall receive a pay adjustment at a rate of 
.50/hour; and   
 
WHEREAS, such pay adjustment shall become effective with the pay period beginning 
September 8, 2011. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation 
of  $ 24,283 for a Fiscal 2011 pay adjustment, as herein set forth, effective September 8, 
2011.  The annual cost of such pay adjustment is $ 315,681. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Fred Small, Mayor 
         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

154



ORDINANCE 2011-60 
 

Pay Table Revision:  Full Time: $1,040/yr  / Part-Time: $ .50/hour-  Pay Adjustment 
 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52, and amended in 2007 and 2008, approved and adopted 
the City of Daphne Pay Table on January 3, 2005; and 
 
WHEREAS, such Ordinance does provide for the amendment of the pay tables from time 
to time; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-58 did hereby approve an across-the-board annual pay 
adjustment of $ 1,040 for full-time employees and $.50/hour for permanent part-time 
employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pay Tables require certain amendments to include such across-the-board 
pay adjustment. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the amended City of Daphne Pay Tables as attached hereto and made a 
part hereof are hereby approved. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Fred Small, Mayor 
         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 
 
 

155



156



157



158



159



160



161



ORDINANCE 2011- 61 
 

Fiscal 2011 Road Striping & Marking Projects 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received a cost estimate from the County for road striping 
& marking for several areas within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, road striping & marking services are required for the following roads 
and additional areas as required (6.91+ /miles): 
 

1.  County Road 64      
 2.  Dimitrios Avenue 
 3.  Justina Avenue   
 4.  North Main Street 
 5.  South Main Street 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  an appropriation of $ 14,915 from the Seven Cent Gas Tax Fund for 
the road striping & marking needed for the above listed road projects is hereby 
approved and if all funds are not expended on the above listed streets additional 
striping may be completed with remaining funds. 
 
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                       ________________________________         

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                       
 

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen,  
City Clerk MMC 

162



 
 

ORDINANCE 2011-63  
 
 

NRDA Appraisal Appropriation 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is aware of the environmental impact the various 
wetlands in Daphne have to the vitality of Mobile Bay; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council plans to make application for NRDA grant funds to 
purchase coastal wetlands; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to obtain appraisals on Leon Allen’s property, 
Friday Construction’s property, Marino’s property, and Davenport’s property for 
informational purposes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
Lodging Tax appropriation in an amount not to exceed $ 7,500 for the appraisals of  
Leon Allen’s property, Friday Construction’s property, Marino’s property, and 
Davenport’s property. 
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this          day of            , 2011. 
 
         
         
                                                                       ________________________________         

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
 
 

                       
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

163



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2011-64 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX THE RIGHT OF WAY OF ALABAMA STATE 

HIGHWAY 181 FROM LAWSON ROAD SOUTH TO THE SOUTHERNMOST 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, on the 25
th

 day of May, 2011, the State of Alabama, being the owner of the 

real property herein described, did file with the City a letter containing the signature of Vincent 

E. Calametti, P.E., an authorized agent of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation, 

and a map of said property showing its proximity to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, whereby the State of Alabama provided its consent to the annexation of said real 

property into the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, desires to utilize said real property for the 

health, safety, and welfare purposes of providing fire and police protection; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama, at its regularly 

scheduled meeting of June 23, 2011, forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation to the 

City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama for annexation of the areas shown in Exhibit “A”; 

and,  

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held on August 1, 2011, by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne concerning said letter for annexation; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne determined it is in the public 

interest that said real property be annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama and that all legal 

requirements for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 

through 11-42-24, Code of Alabama (1975).  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION I:  ANNEXATION 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered 

or rearranged as to include all of the territory heretofore encompassed by the corporate limits of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described territory, to-wit: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

164



 

 
ORDINANCE 2011-64              ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  2 

 

 

 

Name:   Right-of-Way of Alabama State Highway 181 from Lawson Road southward unto the  

              southernmost City limits 

 

Legal Description: BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAWSON ROAD AND THE WEST RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 (FORMERLY COUNTY ROAD 27), 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, FOR THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-

OF-WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT 

OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINE OF OLDFIELD 

SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2328-C&D, 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE 

EASTERLY  TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

PROPERTY LINE OF DUNMORE SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS 

RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2414-A&B, SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 

RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-

WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT OF 

THE PROJECTED INTERSECTION OF THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

LAWSON ROAD; THENCE WEST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Being contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

SECTION II:  PUBLICATION 

 

 This ordinance shall be published as provided by law, and a certified copy of the same 

shall be filed with the Probate Court of Baldwin County, Alabama. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 

thereof. 

 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately and be in full force after final 

passage and publication as required by law. 

 

 

 

165



 

ORDINANCE 2011-64              ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  3  
 

  

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF ____________, 2011. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

        

 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       FRED SMALL, 

       MAYOR 

        

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

DAVID COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

  

166



167



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2011- 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX THE RIGHT OF WAY OF ALABAMA STATE 

HIGHWAY 181 FROM LAWSON ROAD SOUTH TO THE SOUTHERNMOST 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, on the 25
th

 day of May, 2011, the State of Alabama, being the owner of the 

real property herein described, did file with the City a letter containing the signature of Vincent 

E. Calametti, P.E., an authorized agent of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation, 

and a map of said property showing its proximity to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, whereby the State of Alabama provided its consent to the annexation of said real 

property into the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, desires to utilize said real property for the 

health, safety, and welfare purposes of providing fire and police protection; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama, at its regularly 

scheduled meeting of June 23, 2011, forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation to the 

City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama for annexation of the areas shown in Exhibit “A”; 

and,  

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held on August 1, 2011, by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne concerning said letter for annexation; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne determined it is in the public 

interest that said real property be annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama and that all legal 

requirements for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 

through 11-42-24, Code of Alabama (1975).  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION I:  ANNEXATION 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered 

or rearranged as to include all of the territory heretofore encompassed by the corporate limits of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described territory, to-wit: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

168



 

 
ORDINANCE 2011-             ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  2 

 

 

 

Name:   Right-of-Way of Alabama State Highway 181 from Lawson Road southward unto the  

              southernmost City limits 

 

Legal Description: BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAWSON ROAD AND THE WEST RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 (FORMERLY COUNTY ROAD 27), 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, FOR THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-

OF-WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT 

OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINE OF OLDFIELD 

SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2328-C&D, 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE 

EASTERLY  TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

PROPERTY LINE OF DUNMORE SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS 

RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2414-A&B, SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 

RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-

WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT OF 

THE PROJECTED INTERSECTION OF THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

LAWSON ROAD; THENCE WEST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Being contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

SECTION II:  PUBLICATION 

 

 This ordinance shall be published as provided by law, and a certified copy of the same 

shall be filed with the Probate Court of Baldwin County, Alabama. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 

thereof. 

 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately and be in full force after final 

passage and publication as required by law. 

 

 

 

169



 

ORDINANCE 2011-             ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  3  
 

  

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF ____________, 2011. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

        

 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       FRED SMALL, 

       MAYOR 

        

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

DAVID COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

  

170


	AGENDA - September 6 Agenda.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - August 15.pdf
	Backup to Council Minutes.pdf
	PUBLIC HEARING LIST FOR PACKET II.pdf
	PC Letter for Public Hearing - Annex 181 ROW.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Public Safety Minutes.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	BZA Minutes - 11AUG.pdf
	DRA Minutes - August 22.pdf
	IDB August 22 Minutes.pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes.pdf
	PUBLIC HEARING SET DATE LIST FOR PACKET.pdf
	PC Letter - Zoning Map - Set Public Hearing.pdf
	Backup to PC Letter #1 ORD - Revise Zone Map - Set Public Hearing - .pdf
	Backup to PC Letter #2 -  Edits - ZoneJulyMap - Set Public Hearing.pdf
	PC Letters - Hearthsone - Set Public Hearing.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	Special Events Permit - Christ the King.pdf
	ABC License - Harrys Sound Bar.pdf
	Parade Permit - Bounds YMCA.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2011-62 - RES - AMEND STREET MAPS - 8 2011.pdf
	2011-63 - RES - Renaissance 99A - Reappointments to 99A BOD (02214047-3).pdf
	2011-64 - RES - Renaissance 99B - City Resolution Appointing Dir  (Lake) (02214068-3).pdf
	2011-58 - ORD - COLA $ 50-hour Pay Increase.pdf
	2011-60 - ORD - COLA $ 50-hour Pay Table.pdf
	Backup to 2011-60 -ORD - Pay Scale.pdf
	2011-61 - ORD - Road Striping Projects.pdf
	2011-63 - ORD - NRDA Property Appriasals.pdf
	2011-64 - ORD - ANNEXTION - NLDHwy18190ROWSouthRev0627.pdf
	Backup to 2011-64 #1 - ORD.pdf
	Backup to 2011-64 #2 - ORD.pdf

